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J □ HN R. P □ OLE, CPA 
CERTIF"IED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

l 34 NORTHLAKE DRIVE 

HENDERSONVILLE, TN 37075 

Indc1lendent 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

port 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

{61 5) 822-41 77 

1 have audited the financial state1T1cnts of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee (the "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

1n my opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in a'll material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the City, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, State Street Aid Fund Drug Fund, and the Solid 
Waste Fund for the year then ended and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. My responsibilities under those standards arc 
further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my 
rcporl. 1 arn required to be ind pen<lenl of the City and to meet my ther ethical resp n ibilili s in 
accordanc with the relevant ethic ·I requirements re latina to my audit. T believe that the audit cviden e 1 
have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for my audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Sttltements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financia l statements in 
accordance wi th a· ·ounting principles g , n rally accepted in the nilcd States of Am t'i a and for the 
desi 0 n, implementation. and maintcnan c of internal control rel vant to the preparation and fair 
prest:ntation of fmancial statements that arc free from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considet·ed in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for tlteAu.dit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
my opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that. individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In perfotm ing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, I: 

❖ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
❖ Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such proced1.1res 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

❖ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

❖ 13valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 1·easonableness of significant 
a0counting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

❖ Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

T am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that T identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

AccoW1ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Required 
Supplementary Information, which includes Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of 
Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset), and the Schedule of Contributions to the Employee Pensfon 
Plan, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information is the responsibility 
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied 
certain I imited procedures to the required sllpplemc:11tary information in accordance with auditing standards 
gcnernlly accepted in the United States of America. which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit 
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of the basic fu1ancial statements. _I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Supplementary I11formatio11 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opin ions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The supplementary infunnation section, as listed in the 
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements . Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
fioancial statements and certain additional procedures, i.ncluding comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Information - Introductory Section 

Management is responsible for the Introductory Section included in the annual report. The introductory 
Section, as listed in the table of contents, does not include the basic financial statements and my auditor's 
report thereon. My opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the Introductory Section, and 
I do not express an opinion or any other assurance thereon. 

In connection with my audit of the basic financial statements, my responsibility is to read the Introductory 
Section and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the Introductory Section and basic 
iinancial statements, or the Introductory Section otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Jf, based on 
the work performed, T conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the Introductory Section 
exists, 1 am required to describe it in my report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Sta1tdards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated October 31, 2024, 
on my consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agTcements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral pan of an aud it 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 31, 2024 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Hohenwald. Tennessee (the City) we offer readers of the Ciry·s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the -financial activities of the City for 
the !1scal year ended June 30, 2024. The analysis focuses on signiiicant financial position, budgel 
changes and variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the economic 
factors affecting the City. Management 's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on cwTent 
year activities and resulting changes. 

Financial Highlights: 

The assets of the City of Hohenwald exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year by $27,202,442. Of Lhis amount. $7,60 l,987 (unrestricted Net Position) may be used LO meet 
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government's total Net 
Position increased by $1 ,348, J 94 pdmarily due to increases in capital contribution revenues and a 
growing local economy producing increased sales tax and user-related revenues. Expenses were 
$42,878 higher than in the prior year primarily due to higher supplies and increased maintenance 
and repair costs. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported ending. fund 
balances of $4,699,310, an incn.:ase of $1,017,880 in compaJison to the prior year. The City's 
governmental funds had capital asset purchases of $373,971. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $4,128,444 
or approximately 94% of the total general fund expenditures. 

The City's total debt decreased by $622,886 even as the City borrowed $175,000 for a garbage 
truck for the Solid Waste Fund. All debts are being paid on schedule. 

Overview of the Financial Statements: 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hohenwald's 
basic financial slalemenls. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (I) 
gov1munent-wide financial s latemen(s, (2) fund financial statements. and (3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to Lhe basic 
financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers 
with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a maimer similar to a private-sector business. The 
Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities: with the 
difference between the two repo1ied as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases in Net 
Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's Net Position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in Net Position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items U1at will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected tax). Bolh of the governmenr-wide financial 
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by ta,xes and 
iutergoverumental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
::ictivities). The governmental activilies of the City of Hohenwald include general government, 
personnel, unance, parks, planning, police, fire, disposal service: streets and public works. The 
government-wide fioanciaJ statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report. 

A Fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated from specific activities or objectives. The City of Hohenwald, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. Governmental Funds are funds used to account for essentially the same 
functions reponed as governmental activities in the goverument-wide financial statements. 
l lowcver, unlike the government-wide li11ancial statements, governmental fund Gnancial 
statements focus on neaJ-lerm in11ows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances 
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such infomiation may be usefol in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of govermnental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the Jong-term impact of the government's near-te1m 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet imd govemmentaJ fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Inform~tion is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmentaJ fund statement of revcnu<!-s, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the funds aU of which are considered to be major 
funds. 

The City of Hohenwald adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgeta1y 
comparison statement has been provided for the general ftmd to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. Tbc basic financial statements can be found on pages 14-20 of this report. The notes 
provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
govcmmcnt-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found 
on pages 28-46 of this report. 
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Financial Analysis of the Financial Statements -- Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, Net Position may serve overtime as a useful indicator of a government ' s financial 
position. In the case of the City of Hohenwald, assets exceeded liabilities by $27,202,442 at tbe 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g .• land, 
buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastru ·turc) less any r lat1Jd debL u. to cquire tbos 
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses thl! capital a ·scls to provid ·ervi e to citiz ns: 
consequently, these assets are not available for li 1lt 1rc sp nding. I though th ity• in eslm 'O l in 
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it sh uld be n ted U1at the resources need d to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City ofHohcowaJd's Net Position - 2024 

Governmental 
Activities 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows: 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Umestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ ,s-3 1so 
5,495.799 

l'.2 348,979 

632,002 

840,455 

51301,099 
499 355 

4,-19.082 
$10,019,536 
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Business -Type 
Activities 

624,928 
20.380.455 
2-1- 005,383 

355,501 

6,706,603 
445,251 

7,151,854 

26,124 

13,800,001 



City of Hohcnwald's Net Positfon - 2023 

Governmental 
Activities 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Defened inflows: 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 5.736,267 
5.500.588 

11,236~855 

657,81 1 

485,780 
234,206 
719,986 

1,961,534 

5,461,688 
353,467 

3.397,991 
$9,213,146 

Business -Type 
Activities 

3,165,779 
21.020.739 
24J 86,518 

354,205 

7,503,557 
361.753 

7,865,310 

34,311 

13,661,599 

2,979.503 
16,641)02 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City ofHohenwald's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows and balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing reguirements in particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure to a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City·s. At the end of the current fiscal year. 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $4.128:444. J\s a measur<! of the general fund 's 
liquidity, it may be uscf'til to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total 
fond expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 94% of total general ftrnd 
expenditures. 

Business-Type Activities 

The BusincssAype funds Net Position increased by $541,804 due to lower repair and maintenance 
and supply expenses than expected. 
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Compu rison of Revenues and Expenses 2023 - 2024 

2023 2024 
2023 2024 Change Business- Business- Change 

Governmental Governmental l3etween type type Betwe.:n 
Act jvjtks Activities )'.cars ctlvities Acti.vities Years 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 896.047 1.099,224 203,177 5,018,308 5,302,565 284,257 
Operating grants and contributions 183.373 152,473 (30,900) 0 0 0 
Capital grants and contnoutions 173,440 444,008 270,568 56,000 0 (56,000) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 858,401 908,366 49,965 0 0 0 
Sales taxes 2,198, 197 2,379,033 180,836 0 0 0 
Other lot-al taxes 525,493 518,230 (7,263) 0 0 0 
State income and excise taxes 48,480 56,934 8,454 0 0 0 
Other 309 010 408,102 99,092 3,729 21,699 17,970 

Tora! revenues SS,192,441 SS.966.370 $773,929 .o?li,037 $5.324.264 $246,227 

Expenses: 
General government 667,653 1,122,986 455,333 0 0 0 
Police department 1,631,968 1,648,096 16,128 0 0 0 
Fire department 352,561 340,092 (12.469) 0 0 0 
Animal control 6,347 7,821 1.474 0 0 0 
.Public works 540,940 639,821 98,88 1 0 0 0 
Cemetery 15,092 17.827 2 ,735 0 0 0 
Parks 49,367 45,,31 (4, l 36) 0 0 0 
Economic development 116,418 97,030 (19,388) 0 0 0 
Emergency services 456,777 417,284 (39,493) 0 0 0 
Golf course 353,530 281,806 (71,724) 0 0 0 
Drug fund expenses 9,223 21 ,907 l2,684 0 0 0 
Highway fllld streets 81,721 67,507 (14,214) 0 0 0 
Solid waste 441,072 452,572 11.soo 0 0 0 
Water and Sewer FU!ld 0 0 0 J,177,806 3 ,248,543 70,737 
Natural Gas Fund 0 0 0 l,999.089 1,533,919 (465,170) 

Total expenses $4,722 669 SS,159,980 $437,311 5,176.89 $4,782,462 ($394,433) 

Increases in Net Position 469,772 806,390 336,618 (98,858) 541.802 640,660 
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Governmental Budgetary Highlights 
The City amended some of its departmental budgets during the year. See pages 21-27 for an 
analysis of the budgets. Amendments were made to the budget dLu·ing the year to reflect the 
additional expenditures as directed by the Board. 

Capital Assets 
The City on Iohenwald's investment in capital assets from its governmental activities at June 30, 
2024, amounts to $5,495,799 (net of accumulated dept'eciation) and its business-type activities 
amounts to $20,380,455. This investment in capital asseis is in land, buildings, improvements~ 
machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the 
current fiscal year was 606,867. 

City of Hohcnwald's Capital Assets - 2024 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net Capital Assets 

City ofHohcnwald's Capital Assets - 2023 

Land, buildings and improvement 
Equipment 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 6,907,371 
3,596,132 

(5,007,704) 
$ 5.495,799 

Goverrunental 
Activities 

$ 6,887,817 
3.387,958 
(4,775,187) Less accumulated depreciation 

Net Capital Assets $ 5.500,588 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 32,962,464 
3.607.868 

(16,189,877) 
$ 20,380.455 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 32,846,270 
3.344.923 

( I 5,170,454) 
$ 21.020.73_9 

Additional infom1ation on the City of Hohenwald's capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements section of this report. 

Long-term Debt 

The City has total debt of $6,775,154 of which $ l94,700 is general obligation debt for two 
sanitation trucks and $446,880 in landfill post-closure costs, $6,048,854 is debt of the Water and 
Sewer Utility system, and $531.600 is debt for tbe Natural Oas system. Dw-ing tile year, the City 
paid $19,200 to reduce governmental debt, $734. 786 to reduce Water and Sewer debt, and $43,900 
lo reduce Natural Gas debt. The City borrowed $1 75,000 for a garbage truck for the Solid Waste 
Fund. All debts are being are paid as scheduled. 

Additional information on the City of Hohenwald's long-term debt can be found in the notes to 
the financial statements section of this report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

In the 2024-2025 budget, General flmd revenues and user charges are budgeted to increase from 
the 2023-2024 budget year prirnat·iJy due to increases in user charges and local revenues. The 
City's budget has benefited by an expanding co1Umercial and retail base producing increased local 
sales tax receipts. Expenses are expected to remain stable during the 2024-2025 fiscal year. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2024-2025 fiscal year. 

Requests for Information 

This fownci1:1l report is designed to provide a general overview of lhe City of Hohonwald, 
Tennessee's finances for all those wilb an interest in the govcrnmem·s finances. Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to: 

Kyle Hamm 
City of Hohenwa1d 

10 



3,500,000 

3,000,000 

2,500,000 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

0 

Taxes 

CITY OF HOHENWALD 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES 

Intergovernmental Fines and fees 

REVENUE SOURCE 

Miscellaneous 

■current year 

□ prior year 

■ 2 years ago 

□ 3 years ago 

4 years ago 



1,800,000 

1,600,000 

1,400,000 

1,200,000 

1,000,000 

800,000 

600,000 

400,000 

200,000 

0 

CITY OF HOHENWALD 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

General Police department Fire department Animal control Public works Cemetery 

government 

CATEGORIES 

Recreation Emergency 

sen/Ices 
Drug Fund Highway and 

streets 

■ current year 

13 prior year 

■ 2 years ago 

□ 3 years ago 

4years ago 



BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 



Cash and cash eQul11alents 

Receivables 

Prepaid assets 

Inventory 

Capital assets not being depreciated 

Capita! assets, net of aaoumulated depreoiatlon 

Total Assets 

Dererred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred outflows of resources - pension 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Uabflitles, Deferred Inflows aod Net Positjon 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
unearned ,revenue - ARPA grants 
Net pension liability 

Long-term llabill!les; 
Post i;:losure care cost 
Premium on Long-term debt 
Due within one year 
Due In more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred lnflOWs of Resources: 
Deferred Inflows or resources - property tax 
Deferred inflows of resources - pension 

Total Deferred lnfiows of Resources 

Net Position: 
Net ln11eslment in -Capital Assets 
Restricted - Slate street aid fund 
Restricted - Drug fund 
Res1ncted- Solid Waste fund 
Unrestr'icled 

Tolal Net Position 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30 2024 

Governmental 
Activities 

5,576,033 

1,232,918 

45,229 

0 

65S-,582 

4,639~17 

12,348 979 

632,002 
632,002 

113,360 
148,876 

1,131 ,368 
85,806 

446,880 
0 

37,700 
157,000 

2,120,990 

794,012 
46,<\43 

840.455 

5,301,0~ 
235,096 

53,771 
210,488 

4,219,082 
10 019,596 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Bustness•1ype 
Aciivlties 

2,668,765 

676,123 

33,824 

244,216 

199,164 

20,181,271 

241005,383 

355,501 
355 501 

293,224 
103,781 

0 
48,266 

0 
126,149 
795,732 

578t.,722 
7 151 85'1 

0 
2~124 
2 124 

13,800,001 
Q 

0 
0 

3,362,905 
11Jez,§os 

To1a1 

8,243,798 

1,911,041 

79,053 

244,216 

1,055,766 

24.820.'188 

36,354,362 

987,503 
967 503 

406,584 
252,637 

1. 131,368 
134,072 

446,880 
126,149 
833,432 

5,941 ,722 
9,272,844 

794,01 2 
72,567 

i!il'.6 57:ii 

19,101 ,100 
236,096 

53,771 
210,468 

7,601,987 
27,202,442 



'F'uoct,cQIP/CJlGlI!.t 

Government AcU\/ltles: 
General govemmen! 
Police depar1rncnt 
Fir,, departmenl 
Anl rnal control 
Public \\10(1\S 
Cemetery 
Pm1<s 
Econo111ic development 
Emergency ser,l(:es 
Golf Course 
So"d Waste fund 
Drug fund 
Highway and slreels 

Total Governmental Ac;ijvitie. 

Business - type Aclivllfes; 
We!e r and Sewer Fund 
Natural gas Fund 

T olal Business Type Acllvmes 

, otal 

err{ OF HOHENWALD. TENNESSEE 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Enllad June 30, 2024 

Program Re~enues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Gf'llnLS and 
E•uenses Services Conlrjhutioo• c on1rJbut100• 

1.122,986 111.590 4.000 444,008 
1.6-48,096 6 ,829 12,600 0 

:M0,092 0 0 0 
7 ,821 D () 0 

639 ,821 0 0 0 
17,627 7,600 0 0 
45,23 0 0 0 
97,0.10 0 0 0 

41'7 ,284 275,652 0 0 
281 ,806 122,725 0 0 
452,-572 537,3A3 0 0 

21,907 35',485 0 0 
ol 507 0 135673 a 

5159 980 1,099 ,224 152 473 444 ,008 

3,248,543 3,667,865 0 0 
\ 533.919 1634700 0 0 
4,782,462 5,3021565 0 0 

9,942.442 6.401.789 152.473 444.008 

Gener,,! Revenues: 
Property wes 
Publlc utility la>:es 
Sales laxes 
Beer and liquor taxes 
Franchise tW<es 
Business truces 
State income and excise 1aJ1es 
Sale of assets 
lnlerest income 
Other 

Total general :tivanues 

Changes ln Net f>osiUon 

Net Position - beginning or year 

Nat pQsll!on - ending of year 

Sae accompanying notes to financial statemeoli. 
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Net (Expenses) Revenue and 
Changes to Net Eoslllo□ 

Go11emmenlal Buslne•s-Type 
~ ~ ~ 

(563,388) 0 (563,388) 
(1,626,487) 0 (1,626,467) 

(340,092) 0 (340,092) 
(7,821) 0 (7,821) 

(639,821 ) 0 (639,821) 
(\0,227) 0 (10,227) 
(~5,231 ) 0 (45,231) 
(97 ,030) 0 (97 ,030) 

(141,632) 0 (141,632) 
(159,081) 0 {159,081) 

84,771 a 84,77 1 
13,578 0 13,578" 
68166 0 68,166 

(M~ill) 0 (3.4E;.t275l 

0 419,322 419,322 
0 100781 100.781 
0 520,103 520.103 

(3,464,27-5) 520,103 {2 ,944.172) 

765 ,583 0 765 ,583 
142,783 0 MZ,783 

2,379,033 0 2,379,033 
328,367 0 328.387 

36,856 0 36,656 
153,007 0 153,007 

56,934 0 56,934 
63,817 21 ,699 85,516 

142,097 2 142,099 
202,,es 0 202188 

4,270.665 21 ,7U1 4,292 366 

806.390 541 ,8°'1 1,348,191., 

9.213.146 16.641:102 25,854,248 

10,019,536 17,182,906 27.202 442 
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CITY OF HOIIE 'WALD, TENNESS:EE 

Balance Sheet 

GovernmentRI Funds 

June 30, 2024 

General State Street Drug Solid Was1e 
Fund Aid Fund Fund fund Total 

Assets 

Cash and 1.,"aSh equivalents $5, l 7.6 1- 216,911 $5],771 $136,739 s.s1s,o.n 

Accounts receivable: 
Propcny taxes receivable 857,820 0 0 0 857,820 
Customers 0 0 0 85 212 85,212 
Other governments 267.218 22,668 ,Q 0 289,886 

J.]25,038 22,668 0 85,212 1,232.918 

Prepaid a~SC!s 40,916 0 0 4,313 45,229 

Total Assets '6.333.566 :,;239_ ·79 $53, 771 $226,264 <,,)! J.1 80 

L.m!l!ll~·....D!:f!lli.(lsUntlow t)( Rq5ou.rccS ind FluHI Oalnucc 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $98,456 4,483 0 10.421 T 13.360 
Accrued e,,pcnses 45,967 0 0 5,355 51,322 
Unearned revenue - ARPA grants 1,131,368 0 0 0 1, 131,368 

Total Uab1Litie l.~75,79 I 4.4~3 0 ,-.776 1,296,050 

Deferred Inflow of Resources: 
Deferred current property taxes 794,012 0 () 0 794.012 
Deferred dcliqucnl property taxes 63,808 0 0 0 63,808 

Total Deferred lntlo,v of Resources 857.820 0 0 0 857,820 

Fund Balance: 
Assigned - DARE program 30,595 0 ti 0 30,595 
Non-spendable 40,916 0 0 0 40,916 
Unassigned 4,128,444 0 0 0 4,128,444 
Restricted 0 235,096 53.771 210,488 499,355 

Toral Fund Balance 4,199,955 235,096 SJ.771 210.488 4,699.310 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, illld Pund Balance 6,33J.:i66 239.579 S!>l.771 226,2 ~ 6.8 3,180 

fhc notes accompanying !he financial statements arc an integral prut of these financial statements. 

14 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
of Governmental Activities 

June 30, 2024 

Amounts reported for fund balance - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not flnancial 
resources and. therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 

Other long form assets are not available to pay for currenl-period expenditures 
and lherefore are deferred in the governmental runds 

Pension related accounts - gover11mental funds to no! record these post-benefit 
obllgatlons 

Net pension liability 
Deferred outflow - pension 
Deferred lnfiow - pension 

Long-term liabilities, 1nclud ng bonds payable are not due s1nd payable In the 
current period and therefore ara not reconfod in the funds 
Accrued vacation e~pense 
Post closure care costs 
Bonds payable 

Net Position of governmental actfvltfes 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 

1\,899,310 

5,495,799 

63,808 

(85,806) 
632,002 
(46,443) 

(97,554) 
(446,880 
(1 94,700 

10,01 9,536 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Cha11ges in fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Total 
General State tree! Drug Solid Waste Governmental 
fllM Alil..£wll!. El!.ru! Fund Funds 

Revenues: 
Taxes 3,298,153 0 0 0 3,298,153 
lnlergowmmental l,027,932 128,959 0 0 1,156,891 
fines and foes 526,396 0 35,485 537,343 1,099,224 
Miscollanuous 407, 2 0 5,050 412,102 

Total revenucb 3S~Sl),S33 '5,185 $542,393 $5,966,370 

El<penditures: 
General government 990,526 () () 0 990,526 
Police d~purtment l,566,981 0 0 0 1,566,981 
Fi re department 272,615 0 0 0 272,675 
Animal control 7,401 0 0 0 7,401 
Public works 534,469 0 0 0 534,469 
Cemetery 17,827 0 0 0 11,827 
Golf Course 266,783 0 0 0 266,783 
Parks 45,094 0 0 0 45,094 
Economic d~vclopmtnt 97,030 0 0 0 97,030 
Emergency services 417,284 0 0 0 41 7;284 
Drug fund expenses 0 0 21,907 0 21,907 
Solid Waste fund 0 0 0 419,112 419,112 
Highway nnd streets 0 67,507 0 0 67,507 

CapltAI oullny: 
General government 4,773 0 0 0 4,773 
Police depurtmenl 83,814 0 0 0 83,814 
Fire department 57,335 0 0 0 57,335 
Public works 5,995 0 0 0 5, 99S 
Golf Course 19,554 0 0 0 19,554 
Sol id Waste fund 0 0 0 202,500 202,500 

Debi service: 
Prlnclpal 0 0 0 19,200 19,200 
Interest 0 0 0 5,7i!J 5,723 

Tota.I expenditures ,387,54 1 67,507 21, 07 641i,535 5,123.~90 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 87 1.'H.'.! 61 45.? 13,578 (11)11,142) 842,880 

Other opernting revenues; loan proceeds 0 0 0 175,000 175,000 

Net change in Fund Balance· 871 ,992 61.452 13,578 70,8S8 1,017,8!!0 

Fund balance. beginning of year 3,327,963 173,644 40,193 139,630 3 681,430 

Fund balance, and of year 4.l' 9,955 S~35,01J6 5 ,771 $210,488 4,699,3 111 

Set accompanying noies Lo financial Sl~tements, 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSE.E 

Rcc1>ncilialion of the Statement ofRevcnue5, Expenditures and Cbaoges in Fund BaJance 
of Gover11ment11I Fund~ tu the Statement of Activitie11 

For lhe Year Ended June 30 2024 

Nee change in fund balances - total governmenlal funds : 

An,ount:1 reported for governmental activitie, in the statement of net 
position are difTerent because: 

Governmental funds report capita.I outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over !heir estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation e;,i:pe11se. 

Acquisition of capital assets 
Depreciation e,cpense 

Liabilities not reported in the governrncmal fund -chMge In accrued vacation liability 

Liabi lities not reported la the governmenllll fund -- change in pensiim plan eccrunl 

Liabilities not reported in the govemmencal fund - change in post retirement benefits liability 

Revenues in the stalement <>f activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Reycm1es in tile statement of activities that increase long-terr,, debts: 
Loan proceeds 

Exr,unses reported in tile statement ofuotivities that do not require the use ofcurn,m 
financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the govemmenllll funds 

Loss on disposal of as.sets 
Debt principnl payments 

Change in Net Posltion or govemrnental activities 

s~u ;1c~ompanying notes to finu ncial statements, 
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$ 1.017,880 

373,971 
(365,594) 

7,434 

(52,490) 

0 

(5,845) 

(175,000) 

(13,166) 
19,200 

806,390 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Stntemcnt of Net Position 

Enterprise Funds 

,June 30, 2024 

Water and Natural Gas 
Sewer Fund Fund Total 

·~ets untl Dcfcl' ·cd Out n ws. 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $151,092 $2,517,673 2,668,765 
Customer accounts receivable. net of aUowa.ucc 548,775 129,348 678,123 
Prepaid assets 27,191 6,633 33,824 
Inventory 128,826 115,390 244.216 

Tota l Current Assets 855,884 2,769.044 3,624,928 

Capital Assets: 
Capital assets in service 33,278,894 3,29],438 36,570,332 
Less accumulated depreciation ( 14, I 05.514) (2.08-1,363) (16,1 89,877) 
Tora! Capita.I Assets, Net 19, 173,380 1,207,075 20,380,455 

Toto! Assets $20,029,264 $3,976. 119 24.00 ,383 

Deferred Outflow of Resources: 
De for red outflow of resources - pens 10n 227, 126 128,375 355,50 I 

Total Deferred Outflows $227,126 $1 28,375 $355,501 

L!:1bilitit.1s: 
Accounts payable 125,023 168,20 1 293,224 
Accrued expenses 55,473 48,288 103,761 
Net pension linbiliity 30,837 17A29 48,266 
Premium on Long-lorm debt 126,149 0 126,149 
Long-term debt dui.: within one year 751 532 44,200 795,732 
Long-term debt due in more thun one year 5,297,322 487.400 5,784,722 

TotaJ Liabilities 6,386.336 76 .5 18 7, 151.854 

Deferred Inflow of Resources: 
Deferred inflow of resources - pension 16,690 9,434 26,124 

Total Deferred Inflows 16,690 9.434 26.124 

Ncl Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 13,124,526 675,475 13,800,001 
Unrestricted 728,838 2,654,067 3,382,905 

Total Net Position 13 853,364 3,329,542 17,182,906 

The notes accompanying the financia l slatemcnts arc an integral part oftfa:_sc flnancial statements. 
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Operating Revenues: 
Service fee5 
Tap and connection lees 
Other income 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries 
Payroll ta."<es 
Employee benefits 
Training and travel 
Fcc:s and memberships 
Utilities 
Professiona I services 
Natural gas purchased 
Jnsurance 
Repair and malniennnce 
Supplies 
Office expense 
Vehicle expense 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating Reveni.es (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Gnin/{loss) on sale of assels 
Interest expense 

CITY OF HOHENW ALO, TEN ESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expeoses 
11nd Changes in Net Position 

Enterprise Funds 

For the \leer Ended June 30, 2024 

Wnter and 
Sewer Fund 

$3 401,577 
254,288 

12,000 
3,667,865 

703,729 
57,652 

215,430 
4,398 

32,905 
296,076 

37,461 
0 

96,272 
151,493 
52!,0 lS 
18,130 
47,041 

5,020 
931,667 

3,118289 

549,576 

2 
12,799 

(130,254) 
Total Nonoparating Revenues (Expenses) (l 17 .453) 

Net change in position 

Net Position, July I, 2023 

Net Position, June 30, 202/4 

432,123 

13,421 ,241 

S IJ,853,364 

!\rural Gas 
Fund 

$1,600,009 
33,195 

l.496 
1,634,700 

522,840 
33.430 

187,540 
5,873 

20,981 
18,697 
32,238 

473,659 
19,998 
I 0,551 
56,846 
2, 164 

13,498 
450 

118,731 
1,517,496 

117,204 

0 
8,900 

(16 423) 
(7.523) 

109,681 

3,219,861 

The notes aocompaaying the finnncial statements are an [n tegral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

$5,001,586 
287,483 

13,496 
5,30 ,56' 

1,226.569 
91,082 

402,970 
10,271 
53,886 

314,173 
69,699 

473,659 
116,270 
162,044 
577,861 
20,294 
60,539 

S,470 
1,050,398 
4,635.785 

666.780 

2 
21,699 

(146,677) 
(121.976 

541 ,804 

$17,182,906 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Enterprise Fund Types 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Act(vitles 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing ActJvities: 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Gain/loss on sale of assets 
Interest paid 
Repayment of debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from tnvesting Activities: 
Interest recelved 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2023 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2024 

Reconc11iation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss), 
Adjustments to reconcile operating Income to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets (Jncrease) decrease: 

Receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid assets 
Deferred outflows 

Change in liabilities increase (decrease): 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Premium ori long~tenn debt 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Acti'vilies 

Water and Natural 
Sewer Fund Gas Fund 

3,593,515 1,629,435 
(1,341,110) (488,058) 

(976,811) {743,810) 
1.275,594 397,567 

(329,301) (175,838) 
61 ,624 55,1 00 

(130,254) (16,423) 
(734,786) (43,900) 

(1 ,132,717) (181,061) 

2 0 
2 0 

142,879 216.506 

8,213 2,301,167 

151,092 2,517,673 

549,576 117,204 

931 ,667 118,731 

(74,350) {5,265) 
(22,967) 9,883 
(5,674) (1 ,391) 

(14,603) 13,307 

(73,757) 134,686 
(9,450} 6,286 

(18,268) 0 
17,317 8,416 
·@1897) (4,2.90) 

1,275,594 397,567 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Total 

5,222,950 
(1,829,168) 
(1,720,621) 
1,673, 161 

(505,139) 
116.724 

(146,677) 
(778,686) 

(1,313,TTB) 

2 
2 

359,385 

2,309,380 

2,668.765 

666,780 

1,050,398 

(79,615} 
(13,084) 

(7,065) 
(1,296) 

60,929 
(3,164) 

(18,268) 
25,733 
{8,187) 

1,673,161 



CITY OF HOHENWAL D, TENNESSEE 

t111ement of Revenues, Expenditures 
nd Changes in fi'untl Bal11 ncc - Budget (GAAJ> Basis) und Actual 

General Fund 

For the Vear Ended ,Ju ne 30, 2024 

Original Final 
Budget Bud~et Actual 

Revenues: 
Ta.xes: 

Properly Laxes $749,000 $749,000 $765,583 
Public utility laxes 94,000 94,000 97,578 
Local sales tax 1,655,000 1,655,000 1,918,374 
Local beer and I iquortax 302 000 302,000 308,765 
Mixed drink tax 9,000 9,000 17,990 
Franchise taxes 49,000 49,000 36,856 
Bt1sinc.~s taxes 65,000 65,000 153,007 

Total Taxes _ 9!3,000 2,923,000 3,298,153 

Tnlcl'governincntal: 
TVA in lieu 44,000 44,0(}0 45,205 
State sales tn. • 420,000 420,000 460,659 
State beer tax 0 0 1,612 
Stale Income tax 40,000 40,000 0 
State special petroleum tax 7,000 7.000 6,714 
Grants 5,000 444,008 444,008 
State supple1nent 13,600 13,600 12,800 
Corporate exoisc tax 30.000 30,000 56,934 

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 559,600 998,608 1,027,932 

fines and fees : 
Building permits 10,000 I0,000 90,581 
Police fines 6,200 6,200 8,829 
Golf course revenues 182,500 182,500 122,725 
Dispatcher reimbursement 237,000 237,ooo 275,652 
Cemetery I 200 1,200 7,600 
Other fines and fees 2,600 2.600 21,009 

Total Pines and Fees 439,500 439.500 526,396 

Miscellaneous: 
Misccl/ant-ous 5,900 5,900 - •10.i 
Economic dcvelopmenl 1,500 1,500 ()() 

Insurance recoveries 3,000 3,000 I 1.>.724 
Reimbursements 255,144 255,144 85, <,I 
Donations 15 000 15,000 -l,000 
Sale of a ·sets 0 0 58.7 7 
Interest income 40,000 40.000 112,097 

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 320,544 320,544 407,052 

Total Revenues " · -"M•()-14 4,68 1,652 5,259,533 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Posltivc 
(Negative) 

16,583 
3,578 

263,374 
6,765 
8,990 

(12,144) 
88,007 

375,153 

1,205 
40,659 

1,612 
(40,000) 

(286) 
0 

(800) 
26,934 
29,324 

80,581 
2,629 

(59,775) 
38,652 
6,400 

18,409 
86,896 

(3,497) 
(1,000) 

110,724 
(169,583) 

(11,000) 
58,767 

102,097 
86,508 

577 881 



CITY OF HOH ENWALD, TENNESSEE 

StRtcmcnt of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Ba5is) ~nd Actual, Continued 

EJ<penditures; 
General Government: 
Current: 
Salaries 
Payrol I taxes 
Employee benefits 
Utilities 
Professionnl services 
Of!ice supplies 
Supplies 
Donations 
Travel a11d training 
Insurance 
Dues and subscriptions 
Vehicle expenses 
Repai r and main1cnance 
Grant expenses 
Miscellaneous 

Copitaf omlay 
i:01al General Government 

P~blic Safety: 
Pol ice Oepartment7 
Currenr: 
Salorie~ 
Payfoll ta.~es 
Employee bcnelits 
Training 
Dues and subscriptions 
Uti lities 
Insurance 
Vc~iclc c.~pense 
Repair & maintemlncc 
Supplies 
Professional services 
Mis cell a neo us 

Capi1al outlay 
Total Police Depanment 

Fire Deponment: 
Current: 
Salari~s and volunteer firemen 
Payrol I taxes 
Employee benefits 
Training and travel 
Repair and maintenance 
Supplies 
Uniforms 
Utilities 
Insurance 
Vehicle expenses, 
Mi5c~llancous 

Capilal mt1fay 
Total f'ire Depnnment 

Total Public Safety 

Coritrnucd on next page 

Genenl Fu11d 

For the Year Ended ,lune 30, '2024 

Original 
Budge! 

305,000 
23,J33 

136,200 
22,000 

114,000 
26,800 
81 ,000 
12,000 
7,000 

35,000 
29,000 
12,000 
37,250 

0 
55,250 

895,833 
50,000 

1/I.S,1JJ 

940,000 
71,910 

408,500 
5,000 
1,900 
5,000 

45 ,000 
37,000 

3,900 
36,650 
27,700 

7,900 
1,590,460 

5,000 
U S,i160 

151,000 
K,721 

53,500 
2,000 

l3,000 
19,000 
15,000 
12,000 
12,000 
9,500 
1,000 

296,721 
2,500 

299,221 

1,g9~ ,6Kl 

Final 
(]udgcl 

305,000 
2J,J3) 

136,200 
22,000 

11~.000 
26,800 
81 ,000 
12,000 
7,000 

35,000 
29,000 
12,000 
37,250 

539,007 
55,250 

1,434,840 
50,000 

1,484,840 

940,000 
71 ,910 

53).500 
5,000 
1,900 
5,000 

45,000 
'.17,000 
3,900 

)6,650 
27,700 

7,900 
1,715,460 

105,000 
1,820,460 

151 ,000 
8,721 

53,500 
2,000 

l.3,000 
19,000 
15,000 
12,000 
12,000 
9,500 
1,000 

296, 721 
62,50[} 

359,221 

2179,681 

Actual 

355,332 
22,948 

199,609 
60,351 

129,705 
29,339 
15,700 
14 ,987 

1,162 
32, 108 
10,833 
8,234 

14,713 
87,202 

8,303 
990,526 

4,773 
995,299 

927,649 
64,051 

380,859 
9,517 
9,471 

21 ,378 
45,643 
35,258 
24,106 
24,457 
13,697 
10.895 

1,566,981 
83,814 

1,650,795 

13 , IIJ! 
9,986 

44, 381 
576 

21,5:P 
2,438 

16,416 
14,784 
17,388 
6,081 

0 
2'1-.67> 
57.335 

330,010 

l,0S0.~O 

The notes accompanying the linnnoial sllltemenls are an integral part of1hese tinDncial statements·. 
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Voriance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ncgat!I·.:) 

(50,'.JJ2) 
385 

(6J,qo9) 
(38,351) 
(15,705) 
(2,539) 
65,300 
('.2,987) 
5,838 
2.892 

111,167 
3,766 

22,S37 
451 ,805 

46,947 
444,314 
45,227 

489,54) 

12,35 1 
7.859 

152,64 1 
(4,517) 
(7,571) 

(16,378) 
•(64J) 
1,742 

(20,206) 
12,193 
14,003 
, 2.~tis 

148,479 
21 , 186 

169,665 

12,898 
(1,265) 
9, 119 
1,4;24 

(9,523) 
16,562 
(1,4 l!i) 
(2,784) 
(5,388) 
J,419 
J,000 

24,046 
5, 165 

29,211 

IIIX,871> 



CIT\' OF IWHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditure 
~nd Changes in Fund B11lance - Budget {GAAP Basis) and Actual, Continued 

Genenl Fund 

For the Year Ended June JO, 2024 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Bud~et Actual (Negative) 

Animal Control 
Salary and benefits 14,742 14,742 4,476 10,266 
Mainlenance and supplles 4,100 4,100 2,925 1.17 

18,842 18.842 7,401 11,-1.JI 
Capital oullny 0 0 0 0 

Total Animal Control 18,842 lK.842 7,401 11,-t.ll 

Public Works: 
Salaries 195,000 29-,000 2•14,831 50, lr, 
Payroll taxes 14,918 14,918 13,463 (.,)55 

Employee benefits 80,200 130,200 113,473 16,727 
Repair nnd maintenance 66,500 66,500 34,873 31.027 
Vehicle expense 45,000 45,000 30,447 11, -53 
Materials lllld supplles 33,000 33,000 57,519 { .. 1,51 1)) 

Utilities 7,500 7,S00 15,588 (&,OSK) 
Professional services 0 0 23,065 tl3.0b5 
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 J 210 790 

444,118 5'N,ll 534.--1111) 

Cnpilnl outlay 0 0 5,995 
Total Public Works 444.118 94.118 •IO,• ,,I 

Cetnctcl)' 
Repair and maintenance 20,100 20,100 17,827 '273 

20, 100 20, 100 17,827 2,273 
Cnpital outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Cemetery 20.100 :!0.100 IU27 2,::!.73 

Golf Courst; 
Salaries 155,000 155,000 ll6,0'ZO )8.930 
Payroll loxes 10,7!0 10,710 5,971 4,73fJ 
timploye<: bc,•icfits 22,850 22,850 23 ,680 (830) 
Ulilitie, 14,000 14,000 11 ,197 -.lit! 
Repair and mu111tc11ance 108,500 108,500 S8.660 I .k-10 
Toum11111cnt Prizes 12,000 12,000 13,972 l 1,9n) 
Vehicle cxpen!e 6,000 6,000 5,287 71) 
Insurance 2,000 2,000 5,434 (J,•13'1) 
Materials and supplies 33,500 33,500 20,262 l.l,.138 
Professional services 0 0 6,250 (6.250) 
Miscellaneous 3,300 3,300 0 ,300 

367,860 367,860 266,783 101,077 
C3pital outlay 0 0 19,554 119, -,Ji 

Total Golf Course 367,860 l<,7,860 286.337 81, -:u 

·r11e notes cccompn11y111g the ltnancial statements are an integral part of lhese financial statements. 
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cnv OF ROHENWALD, TENNES EE 

SCRl'cment of Revenues, E xpenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) Rnd Actual, Continued 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June JO, l024 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Buugel Budget Actual (NesauvcJ 

Parks and Recreation: 
Maintenance and supplies 0 100 94 6 
Donation 45,000 45,000 45,000 0 

45,000 45,100 45,094 6 
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 

Toral Parks und Recreation "15,000 45,100 ,0911 6 

Economic development 
Salaries 44 ,000 44,000 ·I0,119 1 3,009 
Payroll ta.xes 3,366 3,366 -,793 573 
Employee benefits 19,180 19,180 I ,22h 3,954 
Economic devclopmcn1 12,000 12,000 9, 0 2,750 
Training and travel 3,500 3,500 I) 3,500 
Materials and supplies 1,300 1,300 l;UOO 300 
Utilities 0 0 24-0 (2,420) 
Miscellaneous 25.295 25,295 25.]50 (55} 

108,641 108,641 lJ7,fJ30 11,611 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 

Total Economic development 108,641 IOR,6 l 7,0 0 11.611 

Emergency Services: 
Salaries 260,000 260,000 286,347 (26,347) 
Payroll ta es 19,890 19,890 18,951 939 
Employee benefits 106,950 156,950 107,982 48,968 
Memberships 7,200 7,200 560 6,640 
Supplies 3.529 3,430 3,444 (14) 

397,569 447,470 417.284 30,186 
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Emergency Services 397.569 447,470 417,-84 J0, 186 

Tot~I Expenditures -l'.!112, 4'1 •l,387 •I I 

Excess (deficiency) ofRevcnues 
over Expe:ndilures 0 (585,000) 871,992 1,456.992 

Fund Balance, July I, 2023 3,327.963 3,327,963 3,3~7.963 0 

Fund Balance, Jl!ne 30, 2024 3,327,963 2,742,963 •l. 19 .95· 1,456.992 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, .Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

State Street Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2024 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual cguti l!J 

Revenues: 
Intcrgovernme11tal: 
Gasoline .03 tax 22,000 22,000 J 8,96S (3,035) 
Gasoline 1989 tax 12 000 12,000 10,271 (1,729) 
Gasol inc 20 I 7 tax JS,000 3S,000 32,971 (2,029) 
Gasollne and tnotor fuel 69,000 69.000 66.752 (2,248) 

Total Revenues 138,000 138,000 128.115 

Expenditures: 
Streets; 
Street lights 138 000 138,000 67,S07 70,493 
Capitul Outlay 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 138,000 138,000 67,507 70,493 

Excess (de0cicncy) of revenues 
over expenditures 0 0 61452 61,452 

Fund Balance, July t 2023 173,644 173,644 173,644 

Fund Balance, June JO, 2024 173,144 235,096 61,452 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financia l statements. 
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Revenues: 
Fines and Fees: 
Drug related 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Supplies 
Capital Out!ny 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Fund Balance, July l, 2023 

Pund Balance, June 30, 2024 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Drug Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Original Final 
Budget Budget 

20,000 22,000 

0 0 

20,000 22,000 

20,000 22,000 
0 0 

20,000 22,000 

0 0 

40,193 40,193 

$40,193 $40,193 

Actual 

35,485 

0 

35,485 

21,907 
0 

21,907 

13,578 

40,193 

53,771 

The notes accompanying the tinancial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Ncgmivc 

13,485 

0 

13,485 

93 
0 

93 

13,578 

0 

13,578 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TE NESSEE 

Stntcment of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Chirngcs in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Solid Waste Fund 

For the Ye1tr Ended June 30, 2024 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

Revenues: 
Service fees 507,000 snooo 537,343 
Sale of assets 0 5,050 5,050 

Total Revenues 507,000 512,050 542,393 

Expenses: 
Salaries 220,000 220,000 210,537 
Payroll taxes 16,830 16,830 14,546 
Employee benefits 112,550 112 550 79,303 
Fees 1,000 1,000 524 
Utilities 4,000 4,000 4,639 
Professiom1I services 2,500 2,500 3,374 
Insurance 4,900 4,900 5,101 
Repair and maintenance 8,222 8,222 30 951 
Supplies 2,900 2 900 24,882 
Garbage cans 27,000 27,000 14-,485 
Vehicle expense 27,000 27,000 27,728 
Miscellaneous 100 100 3,042 

427,002 427.002 419,112 
Capital outlay 29,998 412,548 202,500 
Debt service 50,000 50,000 24.923 

Total Expenditures 507,000 889,550 646,535 

Excess (deficiency) of 1•evenues 
over expenditures 0 (377,500) ( I 04, 142) 

Other operating revenues: loan proceeds 0 377.500 175,000 

Net change in Fund Balance: 0 0 70,858 

Fund Balance. July I, 2023 139,630 139,630 139 630 

Fund Balance, .June 30, 2024 $139,630 $139,630 $210,488 

The notes accompanying the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Variaru.;e with 
Final 8tJdget 

Positive 
1.:goti c) 

30,343 
0 

30.343 

9,463 
2,284 

33,247 
476 

(639) 
(874) 
(201) 

(22,729) 
(21,982) 
12,515 

(728) 
(2,942) 
7,890 

210,048 
25,077 
32,967 

273,358 

202,500 

70,858 

0 

$10,858 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) Summai:y of Signifkaot Accounting Policies 

The City of Hohenwald, Tennessee, was incorporated by the Private Act of the Tennessee General 
Assembly. The City provides the following services, as authorized by its charter and duly passed 
ordinances: public safety (Police and Fire), water and sewerage, natural gas, streets, sanitation, recreations, 
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. The accounting policies of 
the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

Reporting Entity: 
In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management follows all applicable GASB statements and bas 
addressed all potential component units (traditionally separate reporting entitjes) for which the City may be 
financially accountable and, as such, should be included within the City's :financial statements. The City 
(the primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's 
governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefit or to impose specific financial burden on the City. 
Additionally, the primary government is required to consider other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primmy government are such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The City has no component units at 
yea.rend. 

The financial statements now include government~wide financial statements prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting and the economic measurement focus for all fUJ;1ds. The fund financial statements present 
infmmation for individual major funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are presented in one 
column. The reporting includes the reporting of capital assets, infrastructure and depreciation, the 
elimination of account groups, and the inclusion of management's discussion and analysis. 

The government-wide financial statements present the City1s programs between business-type and 
governmental activities. 

Government -Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The Government-wide financial statements, the statement of Net Position and the statement of changes in 
Net Position, rep01t information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the 
most part, the effect of the interfund activity bas been removed from these statements. Government 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) S1unmnry of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific l'unction or segment Program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants who 
pw·chasc, usc or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and (ii) grants an<l contributions Lhat arc restricted Lo meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular l'uo~tion or segment. Taxc!-i anti other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and enterprise funds. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
:financial statements. 

Measurcm<.:nL 1:ocus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the enterprise fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incutTed, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requfrements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund revenues are rep01ied using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recognized as soon as they become both measurable 
and collectable within the current period or soon enough therealterto be used lo pay Liabi lities ofthc current 
period. The government considt:rs properly taxes and most governmental revenues as available if received 
within 45 days of yearend. Expenditures arc recorded generally when a liability is incurred. as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments arc recorded only when payment is due. 

Propetty taxes! slate shared revenues. and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so bavc been recognized as revenues of the CLLn'enL fiscal period using the 
criteria specified in the paragraph above. All other revenue items are considered Lo be measw-able and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

The government reports the following major funds: 

GencraJ f-und - The General Fund is lhe general operating Lund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources of the general govcrnmem except those rnquircd to be accounted for in another fund. 

State Street /\id Fund - The State Street Aid Fund is used to account for the operations of the state shared 
gasoline revenues. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Drng Fund - The Drug Fund accounts for the revenues derived from drug-related fines and the City's 
investigative and educational programs. 

Solid Waste Fund - To account for the operations of the Sanitation operations. During the year, the Town 
moved the Solid Waste Fund to a governmental fund to better reflect its operations. 

The government reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the Water and Sewer Fund. 

Natural Gas Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the Natural Gas Fund. 

The Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to p1~vate business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (including 
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment~wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- in-lieu taxes and other charges between the 
government's utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amow1ls reported as program revenues include (i) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, 
or privileges prnvided, (ii) operating grants and contributions, and (iii) capital grants and contributions. 
General revenues include all taxes and internally dedicated resources. 

Ente,·prise funds distinguish opcraLing revenues and expenses from nonopcrating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services mid producing and delivering goods in connection 
with a enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the various utility 
funds arc charges to customers for sales and services. The Ulility Fund also recognize as operating revenue 
the portion of tnp lees intended to recover lhe cosl of cotmecting new customers to the system. Operating 
c>..--pcnscs for enterpri se funds indude the cost of sales and servicc.s, administrative cxpcoses. and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non­
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and wll'estricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When unrestricted funds are used, the City 
uses committed, assigned then unassigned funds. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) 

R cciva I sand Payabl s 
ti ity between funds that ar repre ntatj e of lending/ b rr ·ng arrang m nt ul tanding at the end 

oflh fiscal year are referr to as ither due from/ duel olh r und (i.e. the urr nt porti n of interfund 
loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances. 

Advances between funds as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are 
not expendable available resources. All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible 
if applicable. 

DefotTed urce • 
In addition tb assets, the Statement o[ Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outOows of resources, represents a 
c nsumption f net po ilion that appli s to a future peri d s and so will not be recognized as an outflo of 
• sour es ( xp ·nsc/ .'p nditurc) umil then. The governm nt has one item (pension r 1 t d that qualifies 
for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the Stalement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resow-ces. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resow·ces, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
cesources (revenue) until that time. The government has items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
Accordingly, the items are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the governmental 
funds balance sheet. These revenues are from the following sources: current and delinquent property taxes, 
which do not meet the availability criteria in governmental funds. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. Additionally, the 
government bas one item (pension related) that qualifies for reporting in this category. 

ct Position I· I w !\ssumpti u 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net 
position in the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made 
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City's policy to consider 
restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of savings accounts, certificates of deposit with original 
maturities three months or less and amounts held by the State Local Government Investment Pool. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

otes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) ummary of ignificant couJ1ting Policic , Contfoued 

Pr p ·rty Tax 
The ity's property tax is levied each July 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January I for all real 
and personal property located in the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate are declared to be 
a lien on such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made. 

Assessed values are established by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of appraised market value: 

Public Utility Property 55% 
Industrial and Commercial Property 
- Real 40% 
- Personal 30% 
Farm and Residential Property 25% 

Taxes were levied at a rate of $1.13 per $100 of assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 
Payments may be made during the period fr m Jul I thr ugh November 1. mrcnt tax coll ction of 
$772,333 for Lhe fi al y ar enck:d June 30 _Q_4 were approximately 91 percent of the tax levy. D linquent 
taxes are turned over to the County for collection as required by the City's Municipal Code. 

h&Q"""it=al~== 
apital 1 ' ets, whi h in Jude prop rty . pl::u1L and quipment, and infrastructure assets consisting of certain 

impro cments th r than buildings in luding rnad. biid c . tT ts and sid walks. and cirainng sy 'tl!IDS 
ar • report ·d in Lhc appl icabk go ernm~ntal or busin • -lyp a ·tivitic columns in th government- id 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government a a set with an individu 1 o l of$ -oo 
and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. II. capitaJ as ts ar valu d at historical cost or 
estimated useful life in excess of three years. All capitaJ ass :ts are alued at historical c st or e ti mated 
historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital a els ar vaJued at their estimated 
fair value on the date donated. The costs· of normal ma.int nance and repairs that do not add to th vaJu f 
the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

Interest incurred during the constrnction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is expensed when 
paid and thus not a part of the capitalized cost. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful. Jives using the straight-line method. 

The estimated useful lives arc as follows: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Utility Plant in Service 
Furniture and Equipment 

32 

40-50 years 
10-50 years 
10-50 years 
5-10 years 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Inventory 
Jnvcntory of the Utility Fund is valued at cost, using the first in first out metbod. Inventory of all the 
governmental fonds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and arc recorded at cost under 
the consumption method. 

Compensated Absences 
The City bas accrued a liability for unused sick and vacation pay which is earned, but not taken by City 
employees. 

Balance Balance 
July 1, Addi- Retire- June 30, 
2023 tions ments 2024 

Governmental activities 104,988 7,434 97,554 
Business-type activities 68,506 6,798 61,708 

The liability fol' compensated ::ibsences at1ributabk to the Cit{s govenunental funds is recorded in the 
govcrrum:nt-widc linancial statements as a long-term liability and is a reconciling item between Lhe fund 
and government-wide financial statements. Compensated absences related to busjness-type activities arc 
charged to expense with a corresponding liability established in both the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 
Certain proceeds of the Enterprise Ftmd bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, 
are classified as restricted assets on their respective balance sheets because they are maintained in separate 
bank accounts and their use is either limited by applicable bond covenants or represent proceeds from bond 
issues that are restricted for use in construction. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a. Formal budgets are adopted and approved by Council vote on an annual basis for the General and 
Special Revenue Funds. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). 

b. The City Council approves, by ordinance, total budget appropriations by department only. The 
rvtayor is authorized to transfer budget amounlS between line items within each department; however, any 
revisions 0mt alter the total approp1iations of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 

c. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as amended 
during the year. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(1) Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the :fiduciarJ net position of 
HohenwaJd's participation in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of the Tennessee Consolidated 
Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from Hohenwald's fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TCRS for the Public Employee Retirement 
Plan. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee conttibutions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee Retirement Plan ofTCRS. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 

Lom.?.-lcrm ObligaLions 
In the government-wide financial statements, and enterprise fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or enterprise fund type statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and 
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and arc presented in the accompanying 
:financial statements as other assets. Debt issuance costs, such as insurance costs, fees and other related costs 
are recognized as an expense. 

1ri the fund, financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums <Lid discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Tbe face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Debt issuance 
costs, such as insurance costs, fees and other related costs are recognized as an expense. 

Govcmmcnt Wide - Net Position 
Net position is a component of equity and is displayed in the following three components: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds that are attTibutable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is 
excluded from the determination. 

Restricted - Consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external pa.rlic~, such as 
len.tler!i, grru1tors, contributors, laws, regulations, and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal 
mandates, less any related liabilities. The restrictions are evident from the classification titles. 

Unrestricted - All other net position that does not meet the description of the above categories. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30; 2024 

(1) Summar·v of Signific1tot Accounting Policies, Continued 

Fw1d Balance 
The Town implemented GASB 54 which addresses issues related to how fund balances are reported. Fund 
balances are now reported in the following manner: 

Nonspendable l•'und Balance - This classification includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable form, or 
(b) legally or contractually required Lo be maintained intact. The '·not in spendable form'' criterion includes 
terms that arc not expected to be convened to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, and long­
term notes receivable. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted for specific pwposes 
stipulated by external resomcc providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may 
effectively be changed or Ii fted with the consent of resource providers. 

Committed Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that can only be used for the specific 
purposes dctcnniDed by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making aulhority, the City 
Council o[ the City of Hohenwald, Tennessee. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the City 
taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally (for example: ordinance). 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classi1icalion included amounts intended to be used by the Town for specific 
purposes thac arc neither restricted nor committed. The City Collncil and its llcsig,nce, the Recorder, have 
the authority to assigi1 amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned amounts also include all residual 
amounts in governmental funds (except negative amounts) that arc not classified as nonspcndablc, 
restricted, or committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It is also 
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

ln circumstances when an expcnditw-c is made fo1· a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, commiucd, assigned, and 
unassigned. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabili1ies ut the date oflhc financial statements and Lhe reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses during 
tl1e reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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June 30, 2024 

(2) 

The City is authorized to invest funds in Federal trca tu bill and not Local 
Government Investment Pool and financial institution demand d p it accounts and ccrtificat s of d posit. 
During the year, the City invested funds that were not immediat I ne ded in crtifi ·al ofdepo its avings 
accounts and investments in the State of 1 ennessee I cal Governm n1 .In estm nt Pool. Th ity ha· 
d posil J ulicics to rninimiz custodfal er dit ri ks. J\.11 dcpo its with financial institutions mu t be secured 
b_ uc of two m th d . One 01 th d in I es fmancial institution that par6 ipate in th bank collateral 
p o! administered hy Lhe late trea urcr Participating banks determine the aggregate balance of their public 
fund a count £ r lh tate ofT 1m s. e and it · political subdivisions . The amount of collateral required to 
secure these public deposits must equal at least 105 percent of the average daily balance of public deposits 
heltl . Collateral securities required to be pl ·dged by the participating bani • to protect their publi fund 
ace unts are pledged to the tat · treasurer on b half of the bank collat ral p ol. The securities pledged to 
prot ct th· c aci.: unt ar • pledged in th aggr gate rather than against each account. The members of the 
pool ma_ be required b agre ·m • I'll lo Jay an asse mcnl to cov r any de:ficienc . nd r this additjonal 
ass ssmcnl agr • m nt, puhljc fund ac ·ount cover d by the pool are considered to be insured for purposes 
of credit risk disclosure. 

For deposits with financial institutions that do not parlicipale in the bank collale.ral pool, late statutes 
require I hut ~l I dep si l. be eollat •raliz d with collateral whose marl t al ue is qua! lo 1 5 percent flbe 
uninsmcd amount of the deposit . The oliat ral mu t b placed b th lepo itory bank in an escrow a ount 
in a second bank for the benefit of the city. The City's dcp its with financial institutions are fully insur d 
or coJlateralized by securities held by the depository bank in the go ernm -nt's name. • dditionail th 
deposit accounts arc covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Coverage. 

(3) ·counts Rccci able 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2024, consist of the following: 

Other Property 
Fund Government Taxes 

General Fund $267,218 857,820 
Special Revenue Funds 22,668 
Enterprise Funds 
Less allowance for 
doubtful accow1ts 

Total $ .8 
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Customer 
Accounts 

85,212 
1,900,991 

1,125,038 
107,880 

1,900,991 
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(4) 

A summary of changes in general capital assets as presented in the governmental activities column of the 
government- wide financial statements is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1. 2023 Additions Disposals June 30 2024 

Land $856,582 0 0 856,582 
Buildings 3,589,115 19,554 0 3,608,669 
Improvements 2,442,120 0 0 2,442,120 
Vehicles l,626, 155 83,815 110,243 1,599,727 
Equipment 12761 ,803 270!602 36,000 1,996,405 

Total 10,275,775 373,971 146,243 10,503,503 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,775,187) (5,007 704) 

Net capital assets in service $5,500,588 

All assets, except land of $856,582, are being depreciated. 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

General Fund: 
General government administration 
Police department 
Fi.re department 
Public Works 
Animal shelter 
Park 
Golf 
Solid waste 

Total 
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$68,393 
81,115 
67,417 

105 352 
420 
137 

15,023 
27,737 

365.594 
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(4) ts, Continued 

A summary of changes in Euterprisc (Water and Sewer) Fund capital assets and related accumulated 
depreciation follows ; 

Balance Balance 
__Mi· 1. 2023 Additions Disposals June 30, 2024 

Land and easement $119,796 0 0 119,796 
Buildings 85 014 0 0 85,014 
Utility plant 30,419,339 35,373 0 30A54,712 
Equipment 2,388 444 293,928 63,000 2 619!372 

Total 33,012 593 329,301 63 ,000 33,278,894 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (13,188,022) (14,105,, 14) 

Net capital assets in service $1 ,173 380 

All assets, except land and easements of $119,796 are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was 
$931,667 in 2024. 

A summaiy of changes in Enterprise (Gas) Fund capital assets and related accumulated depreciation 
follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2023 Additions Disposals Jtme 30., 2024 

Land and easement $79,388 0 0 79,388 
Utility plant 2,142,733 80,821 0 2,223,554 
Equipment 956,479 95,017 63 ,000 988,496 

Total 3,178,600 175,838 63,000 3,291,438 

Less Accwnulatcd Depreciation (1,982,432) (2,084,363) 

Net capital assets in service $1,196,168 $1,207 075 

All assets except land of $79,388, are being depreciated. Depreciation expense was $118,731 in 2024. 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

Long-Term Debt Payable and Other Obligation 

Direct Borrowings 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown for governmental activities during 
the fiscal year 2024. 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July 1. 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024 One Year 

First TN - Solid Waste 38,900 0 19,200 19,700 19,700 
TristaJ Bank - Garbage Truck 0 175 000 0 175,000 l8,000 

Total 38,900 175.000 19,200 194 700 37,700 

The following schedule reflects the changes in long-term debt, as shown in the Enterprise (Water and Sewer) 
Fw1d during the fiscal year 2024. 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July I. 2023 Additions Retirements June 30, 2024 One Year 

State Revolving 2,315,474 0 258,098 2,057,376 262,215 
DW-2016-167 i33,666 0 9,588 124,078 10,517 
Series 2022 603,500 0 60,350 543,150 62,050 
Series 2019 1 760,000 0 275,000 1,485,000 280,000 
Series 2020 871 000 0 61,750 809,250 61 ,750 
Series 2021 1,100,000 0 70,000 1 030 000 75,000 

Total 6,783,640 0 T'4,786 6,048 .8 -4 751,532 

39 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Fi11ancial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(5) ong-Tcrm Debt Pa able and 0th r Obligation Payable, ontinued 

The following schedule reflects the changes jn long-term debt, as shown in the Enterprise (Natural Gas) 
Fund during the fiscal year 202.4. 

Balance Balance Due Within 
Bonds Payable: July 1, 2023 Additions Retirements June 30. 2024 One Year 

Series 2020 0 33,250 435,750 33,250 
Series 2022 0 10,650 95~850 10,950 

Total 0 ➔ 900 531,600 44,200 

Principal and interest requirements to maturity on all outstanding bonds, loans and obligations as of June 
30, 2024, are as follows: 

Year Ending 
.June 30, 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

2030-2032 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

2030-2034 
2035-2036 

Total 

Total 

Gen ral ObJigali n 
Prin ·ipal Int rest 
37,700 10,305 
19,000 8,228 
20,000 7,140 
21100 5,994 
22,300 4)83 
7 ,600 6,393 

19 00 42,843 

Water and S w r Department Natural as Department 

Prin ipal lnLt:rc ·t PrincipaJ Interest 

751,532 130,214 44,200 15,198 
770,493 119,077 46,250 13,935 
786,263 100,022 46,550 12,262 
805,345 80,515 48,600 J 0,511 
824,486 60,742 50,650 8,823 

1,827,317 111,593 249,850 20,808 
8 .418 6,128 45,500 967 

filIB.~ 531,600 82,50~ 

The above bonds payable contain provisions that in the event of default, the lender can use any remedy 
allowed by stale or federal law. 
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(6) Pension 1>Jan 

Gcnel"al Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description. Employees of Hohenwald are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public 
Employee Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the TCRS. The TCRS 
was created by state statue under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of 
Trustees is responsible for the proper operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury 
Department, an agency in the legislative branch of state government, administers the plans of the TCRS. 
The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
http://treasu1y.tn.gov/Retirement/Boa.rds-t1nd-Govemance/Reporting-and-lnvestment-P0Iicies. 

{)enefits provided. Tennessee Code Annotated Tille 8, Chapter 34-37 establisbed the benefit tcm1s ru1d can 
be amended ooJy by the Tennessee General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt 1he benefit 
Lem1s pe.nnitted by statute. Members arc eligible to retire with an unreduced benefit at age 60 with 5 years 
of service credit or after 30 years of service credit regardless of age. Benefits are detcrmfoc<l by formula 
using the member's higbest five consecutive year average compensation and the member's years of service 
credit. Reduced benefits for early retirement are available al age 55 and vested. Members vest with Jive 
years of service credit. Service-related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. five 
years of service is required for non-service~related disability eligibility. The service related and non-scrvice­
related disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a .service retirement benefit but are rc<luced 
JO percent and include projected service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under various 
eligibility criteria. 

Member and beneficiary annuitants arc entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs) after 
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 211d of July of the previous year. 
The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI) during the prior calendar year, capped 
at 3 percent, and appl icd to the current benefit. No COLA is granted if the change in U1e CPI is less than 
one-half percent. A one percent COLA -is granted if the CPI change is bctw·een one-half percent. A member 
who leaves employment may withdraw their employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest. 

Employees covered by benefit terms. At the measurement date of June 30, 2023, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Acti vc employees 

Total 

41 

44 
41 
67 

152 
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(6) Pension Plan. Continued 

Contributions. Contributions ror employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and may 
only be chang.ed by the Tem1essce General /\ssembly. Employees con11·ibute 5 percent of salary. Hohenwald 
makes employer contJ:jbutions al the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuat'ial 
valuation. For the yea.r ended June 30, 2024, employer contributions for Hohenwald were ($227,832) based 
on a rate of (6.08%) percent of covered payroll. By law, employer contributions are required to be paid. ll1c 
TCRS may intercept Ilohenwal<l 's stale shared laxes if required employer conu·ibutions are not remitted. 
The employers actuarially determined contribution (ADC) and member contributions a.re expected to 
finance the costs of benefits earned by members during the year; the cost of adminisLration, as well as an 
amortized portion of any unfunded liability. 

Net Pension l,iability (Asset) 

Hohenwald's net pension Jiability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.25 percent 

Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.44 percent based on age, including 
inflation averaging 4.00 percent. 

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustment 2.125 percent 

Mortality rates were based on actual experience including an adjustment for some anticipated improvement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study perfo1mcd for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020. The demographic 
assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience. 

42 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 

(6) 

The long-term expected rate of return o.o pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trn ·t cs inc njun tion with th June 30, 2020 actuarial .·p rience study. blend ffuture ca itaJ markeL 
pr ~e tions 1d historical mark t returns was us din a building-block method in 'Ii hi h a bcst-e timate of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
is developed for each major asset class. These best-estimates are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates by return by the target asset allocation 
pcrccntag an l by adding e,·p(.!cted inflation of 2.25 p rcenl. TI1e be ·t-c limates of ge metric real rates of 
return and the · investment policy targ ·t asset allocation for ·a h ma· r asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Asset class 
U.S. equity 
Developed market international equity 
Emerging market international equity 
Private equity and strategic lending 
U.S. fixed income 
Real Estate 
Short-term securities 

Total 

Long-term Expected 
R al Rwe o(R tum 

4.88% 
5.37% 
6.09% 
6.57% 
1.20% 
4.38% 
0.00% 

Target Allocation 
31% 
14% 

4% 
20% 
20% 
10% 

1% 
100% 

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board of 
Trustees as 6. 75 percent based on a blending of the three factors described above. 

Di, count rate. The disc uni rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75 per· nt. The projection 
r ca h flows used to d tcm1in the discount rate assum d that mpl y e contribulions wi II be made at the 

current rate and that contributions from Hohenwald will be made at the actuarially determined contribution 
rate pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance w:ith the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Trustees 
and as required to be paid by state statute. Based on those asswnptions. the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of cun-ent active and 
inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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(6) ontinued 

Balance at 6/30/22 
Changes for the Year: 
Service Cost' 
Interest 
Changes in Benefit Terms 
Differences between expected 
and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Contri butions-cmp layer 
Contrjbutions-employees 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds 
of employee contributions 
Administrative expense 
Other changes 
Net changes 

Balance at 6/30/23 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30 2024 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Total Pension 
Liability (Asset) 

(a) 

$9 748,003 

262,740 
661,305 

108,437 

(427 268) 

605,214 

$ 10.353.-17 

Increase (Decrease) 

Plan 
Fiduciary Net 

Position 
(b) 

$9,683,622 

179,166 
143,333 
647,169 

(427,268) 
(6,877) 

535,523 

Net Pension 
Liability 
(Asset) 
(a) - (b) 

$64,381 

262,740 
661,305 

108,437 

(179,166) 
(143,333) 
(647,169) 

6,877 

69,691 

$ 134.072 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liabilit (asset) of l lohcn ald calculated u ing the di ·count rar ! 6.75 percent, as w II as h L th 
net pen.ion Ii bility (asset), ould be if it were cal ·ttlatcd using a di count rate th·1t is l-p r ent~1g :.. point 
lower (5. 75 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (7.75 percent) than the cwTent rate: 

Hohenwald's net pension 
Liability (assel) 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%) 

1,561 540 

44 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(6.7-%) 

134,072 

1% Increase 
{7.7-%) 

(1,042,948) 
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(6) 

Pension Expense (income) and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Jnflows of Resources 
Related to }>cnsion 

Pension expense. For the year ended June 30, 2024 Hohenwald recognized pension expense (negative 
pension expense) of $263,936. 

Deferred ou~flows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. For the ·ar ended June 30, ~D- . 
Hohenwald reported deferred outflows or resources and dd rr d inflows of r ·s urce r ·lated to pensi 11s 
from the following sources: 

Differences between expected ahd 
Actual experience 

Deferred Quill 

Net difference between projccl.ed and 
Actual earning on pension plan 
Investments 
Changes in assumptions 
Contributions subsequent to the 
Measurement date of June 30, 2023 

Total 

339,_812 

77,648 
342,211 

227,832 
987. 0 

72,567 

72,567 

The amounts shown above for <Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2023,' wm 
be recognized as a reduction (increase) to net position liability (asset) in the following measurement period. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resomces related to pensions 
wm be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
Thereafter 

$118,083 
$84,154 

$385,822 
$80 976 
$18,073 

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amounts \.Viii 

decrease pension expense. 
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(7) ommitmcnt anti ontingcncic 

LitiJ.ation: 
The City attorney estimates that potential claims against the City resulting from such litigation wiU not 
materiaJ ly affect the financial statements of the City at yearend. 

Grants: 
ounl received frnm Grantur ag n ies are ubj ct to udit and dju tment by Granter g n ies, 

ptincipu11y the Fed ral go crnment. l\ny disallowed claims inclu_ling am unLs already oil ct d could 
become a liability of the applicable fund. 

(8) Ri k Managcm ·ot 

The City is exposed to various risks to general liability and property and casualty losses. The City has 
decided it is more economically feasible to be in a public entity risk pool as opposed to purchasing 
commercial insurance for general liability and property and casualty coverage. The City participates in the 
Public Entity Partners (formerly TML Insurance Pool), which is a public entity risk pool established by the 
Tennessee Municipal League, an association of member cities. The City pays an annual premium to the PEP 
for its general liability and property and casualty insurance coverage. The pool reinsures through 
commercial insurance companies. The City has not had claims in excess of insurance coverage during the 
last three years. 

(9) Contributed apital - EntcrprL e Fund 

In accordance with GASB No. 33 the City no longer records contributed capital from customer tap fees and 
grants from other governments. The City has recorded the contributed capital into its net position accounts. 

(10) 

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops 
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years 
after closure. The accrued landfill closure and post-closure care cost at yearend, was $446,880. This 
represents estimated post-closure cost, based on engineer' s projections. 
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Schedule of Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related 
Ratios Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan ofTCRS 

Last Fiscal Ye:u· ending June 30 

2014 2015 201.6 2017 2018 2019 
To1al pension liability (asset) 

Service cost s 158,309 s 165,713 s 163,192 s 186,867 s I go,(,89 s 178,474 
In1crcs1 s 413.232 s 431 ,408 s 406,025 $ 486,455 s 497.965 $ 524 ,198 
Changes in benefit tcnns s s s s s s 
Di!f~rcnccs between actual & c.,pccted cxpcneurn s t41.()42) s 198,147 s (18,598) s l<I0,700) s 14,358 s 43.179 
Chango-of osS1Jmptions s s s 156,093 s s 
Bcner.t payments. including refunds or emplo ·cc comnbutions s tn'.!.23,l) s !318,880) s (]43,497) s (380,288) s s (337 952) 
Net ,;hongt in total peQsion liabilicy (asse1) s 258,265 s 476,388 s 2(,7.122 s ]58.427 s s 407,899 
Tot•I pcn~ion llabilify (assct)--begilmtng :.4111.5<,,J S5,N51 I s .~.22.! s 6,J89. J s 7,120,1117 
Tota l pension liabil ity (asscl)-ending (11) S • .74 ',83~ S11,......2 ~ , 6.4 9,J,14 S 7J,'.!ll,7t6 

P lan fi ducial)' net positioo 
Conlributions-employc, s 165,009 s 136,520 146,966 142,253 s 147.152 s 152,141 
Contributions-cmploy<"C s 90_374 £ 94, 182 112,675 s 98, !06 s 101 ,484 s 104,925 
Nc1 invtstmcnl income s 877,810 s 188,746 s lb5 ,l83 s 7 11,119 s 570,810 s l48.49l 
Bonclil payment~. including refund~ of employee ~ontributions s (272.234) s (318,880) s (343,497) (380,288) s (319,966) S (337,952) 
/\dininistrati"" expense s (2,166) s (2,994) (4.402) (4,C.15} s (5,338) S (4,937) 

Other s s 28 JK6 s s 
Ncf ch3og~ In plan fid ucia l)' net po ·ition s 858,813 s 97,574 s 105,3ll s 566,665 s 494,14'.! s 462,670 

Plan litlucial)' net position-beginning S 5.] b,714 S 6.h15.,S2.? s 6.:?.--1;;.101 s ,..34<.! 12 s t,,<JIS,077 7 401).2 1•1 

Plan fiduciary net position-ending (b) ~ 11,1~5,~7 Sb,!'13.,101 s 6,348,~I'.! u.ql5,077 7 409 19 s 7,871.'~9 

Nd l'en~ion Liability (asset)-ending (a) - (b) s (399,693) s (20,879) S 140,932 s (67_30b\ S (188.402\ S t.243,173) 

Plijn fi<.lu,i~ry 11ct pQsilion as a percentage of totsl pension liability 106 ')6% 100,34% 97 83% 10098% 102.61% 103 19% 

Coverc<l payroll S 1,71)1,578 S 1,883,029 s 2,027,109 s 1,%2 109 s 2,029,678 s 2,.098,496 

Net pension liobility (!1$Set) as a perscntagc of covered payroll -22.3 1% · I I t% C,95% -'.43% -9 ,28¾ IJ .5qo/o 

C/101,g~.1 ,,f as.m11111/In11s. In 202 l . amounts reported as chanb'CS of assumptions resulted from changes 10 lhc in0ntion rate, investment mtc of return, 

cust-of-livinl.l adjus1ment, salary gro1V1h and monalil)• improvements, In 20 17, amounts r<portcd as chan~cs of nslumptions resulted from changes to 
the fntlal1on rate, investment rate of rctum, cost-or. livin~ adjustment, salary growth and monality improvements 

GASB 68 requires a I 0-ycar schedule for this data \o be prcscnlcd starting wid, the 1mplementation of GASB 68 , 'l11t information in this schedule 

is 1101 required to be presented 1e1roac1ivcly prior to the impkntation date. Please refer to previous!)' supplied dat3 from TCRS GASB website for 
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2020 2021 2022 2023 

s 181,842 s 170,047 s 211,638 262,740 

s 553,294 s 579,9 8 s 605)53 s 661,305 

s s s s 
s (9,566) s (141.J0<,) s 37~,171 s 108,437 
s s 684,424 s s 
s {357,1128) s CB3.3]8) s (399,433) (427,268) 

s 367.742 s 959,8 15 s 791 ,730 s 605.214 
s 7,(,211,716 s 7.996.4511 s 11~7 s 9,711 OOJ 

7.996,Hl! s .956.!71 s '1,7411.00l S 10,J5J,l l7 

s 160,470 s 157.895 s 153,904 s 179,166 
s 110,(,(,9 s 108,893 s 128,276 s 143,333 

s JSS,178 s '.!,097, 54 s (387,651) s 647,169 

s (357.828) s (333,338) s (399 43 ) s (427,268) 

s (4,996) s (5,0]4) s (6,116) s (6,877) 

s s s s 
s 296.493 s 2,016,370 s (511,130) s 535,S23 

s .3~:!. l0.19,1.7 1 s 9.t,!13,6:?.l 

s ,H? -.,r,113,622 lll,.21 ,145 

s 1171.924) s (1,238,419) s 64,381 s 134,072 

102,1.5% 113.83% 99,34¾ 98 71%, 

s 2,213,371 s 2.177.)556 s 2,565.059 s 2,866.bS' 

-7.77% -.56 87% 251% 4 68% 



CITY OF HOH'[NWA LD, TENNESSEE 

S~h~ule of Contribution11 8,i!ul on "P ■ rtici pation in the 
'PubJie- Employtt. Pr:n.s-ion Phtn of TCRS 

For th• 'Vear End<d Jun• 30, 2024 

lli§. mu ill1 

Actuarially determine<l con!rfbuUon 136,432 146,966 124,594 

Contributions In relatlon ro the 
actuarially determined contribution 136432 146J166 142 253 

Conlf'ibutlon deficiency (e•cass) so so (517 ,659} 

Covered-employee payroll i 802 112 2,027 ,109 1,962,109 

Contributions -as a percentage 
covered-6mployee paymll 7.57% 7, 25% 6.35% 

GASB bK require> lO-year«fi<duliofor1.t1osm>1a to DO})rc,:001<0 ,blltlog w,\h the implomento11on ofGASB 6fi . Th• 
infOm'l:ttt ion in tl1 1s st.hedule l:s not re.quired ta be prestntcd rctnl,1.!dively ;mor to the lmplcmun2.1ion de.te Ph:115~ ~fc, 
10 pre,lou,ly >Upplied d~,a from <he TCRS GASB _b,i10 fot prior yeor, ' daia, in needed 

Notes- to Schedule 

Valuation dale; A<,lyari•JIY d~lermTned conltibullon ralas for ff,cal year 202.4 were caloulated based on the 
June 30, 2022 actwartal valuatlon, 

Melhods and a.surnptlons used 10 determlne contribution /llles: 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortizsffon period 

Asset valuation 

lnnation 

Salary Increases 

Investment Rate of Retum 

Retirement age 

Mortality 

Cost of LMng Adjustments 

Entry Age Normal 

Level dollar, closed (notlo exceed 20 year;) 

VaMes by Year 

10-yearsmoo\hed within a 20 percentcorrtdorto ma,~el value 

2.25 peraent 

Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.44 per..ent based on 
age, including inHaaon, averaging 4.00 percent 

6 .75 perceot, net of investment expense, lncl~dlng ln"aUon 

Pa~em of reOrement determined by e~perience study 

Custom~ed table based on acl\Jal expe~enca lnclLJdl~g an 
adjustment (or some anticipated imprnvemer,I 

2.125 percent 

Change5 or ~umptioll5 l n 202 l , the follow,ng as,umptions w,ro ohong,d; docr~IF5ed i nfi11loo r,le l'roin 
2,S0 pcn,co\tO i,.~s pcrc,n~ dec,ow 1hc inYe<tmcnt nllO a£"'""' Imm 7 25 perc<ntlO 6. 75 percent; 
door .. oed the aisl-<if-li'lnJ!: adJustm!nt from 2.25 pcr«nl \o 2 12~ pct<<Ol. Md modified n,onality 
ossumptions ln 2017, tho (ol11>wi n8 os,umptions W•r< ch.,.ge<I ; deor....,d inllotion rate ti'ou, l 00 percent 
u, 2 50 percent, dce"""cd th• inscnmcnt ,.t, ofrotum fil,m 750 percent IQ 7 2S percen~ dco,..,.,d the cost­

of,livtng adj1.mmenl from 2.50 pcr,:cnt to l lS peroc~t.: dcc,r,11<ed .. 11\1'\' grov.tl, graded rangu from"" 
11,y,eragr: of4 15 percent u:i ilTt a"¥erage or 4 00 pcm:eni.; tnd rnodlfi~ mortality IS!Um_ptions, 

WI 2llJj_ W,Q 2021 ~ mu zm, 

97 ,019 109,961 98,274 96,697 113,8B9 173,146 227 ,832 

147 152 152141 160470 157 ,695 153,904 179 166 221,832 

(S50,133) ($42,180) (562,196) _JS61 ,198) (540,015} {56 ,020) so 

2,029 678 2 098 496 2,213,371 2,1n,sss 2,565,059 21B66,657 2,699,718 

4.78% 524% t;A4% ,4 44% 600% 6.25% 6,08% 
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SUPPLEMENTAL 
INFORMATION 



Description 

Land 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Vehicles 

Equipment 
Total Capital Asse1s 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets By Type 

June 30, 2024 

Balance 
July 1, 2023 Additions Disposars 

$856,582 0 0 

3,589,115 19,554 0 

2,442,120 0 0 

1,626,155 83,815 110,243 

1,761 ,803 270,602 36,000 
$10,275,775 373,971 146,243 
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Balance 
June 30, 2024 

856,582 

3,608,669 

2,442,120 

1,599,727 

1,996.405 
10,503,503 



Descripllon 

General Government 

Police Department 

Fire Department 

PUblicWorks 

Garage 

Park 

Golf course 

Animal contro l 

Solid Waste 

Cemetery 
Total Assets 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of the Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Capital Assets By Function and Activity 

June 30, 2024 

Land Buildings Improvements 

$646,726 3,424,870 413,709 

0 1,150 0 

0 0 0 

0 56,085 1,685,116 

0 53,067 0 

0 7,735 340,126 

148,312 55,263 0 

0 10.499 0 

33,475 0 0 

28,069 0 3,169 
$856,,582 3,608,669 2 ,442,120 
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Vehicles and 
Equipment Total 

508,780 4,994,085 

732,021 733,171 

988,026 '988,026 

446,512 2,187,713 

24, 175 77,242 

7,030 354,891 

329,566 533, 141 

0 10,499 

560,022 593,497 

0 31 ,238 
3,596,132 10,503.503 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificate of Deposits 
All Funds 

General Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total General Fund 

S1ate Street Aid Fund - demand deposit 

Drug Fund - demand deposit 

Solid Waste Fund 

Water and Sewer Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Water and Sewer Fund 

Natural Gas Fund: 
Demand deposits 

Total Natural Gas Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents -All Funds 
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Carrying 
Val·ue 

$5,167,612 

5,167,612 

216,911 

53,771 

136.739 

151,092 

151 ,092 

2,517,673 

2,517,673 

$8,243,798 



Tax Year 
2024 $ 
2023 
2022 
2021 
2020 

Tax Year 
2024 $ 
2023 
2022 
2021 
2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 

CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Collections 
Balance and Changes 

July 1, 2023 Levy in Assessment 
794,012 0 

766,446 53,198 772,333 
56,156 0 44,719 
10,497 0 5,437 
3,000 0 3,000 

836,099 847,210 825.489 

Tax 
Adjustment snd 

Tax Rate Tax Levt Collections 
1.1 300 $ 794,012 $ 0 
1. 1300 819,644 772,333 
1.1300 750,333 738,896 
1.1253 723,201 718,141 
1.1253 709,912 709,912 

1.35 723,221 723,221 
1.50 757,142 757,142 
1.50 751 ,654 751,654 
1.50 747,739 747,739 
1.50 736,929 736,929 
1.50 735,112 735,112 

All deliquent taxes have been turned over to the County. 
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Balance 
June 30, 2024 

794,012 
47,31 1 
11,437 

5,060 
0 

857,820 

Outstanding 
Taxes 

$ 794,012 
47,311 
11 ,437 
5,060 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 



CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements-
General Obligation Debt 

June 30, 2024 

Capital Outlay Note Capital Outlay Note 
First TN - Solid Waste Tristar Bank - Garbage Truck Total 

Year Principal lnterest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2025 $ 19,700 1,046 18,000 9,259 37,700 10,305 
2026 19,000 8,228 19,000 8,228 
2027 20,000 7,140 20,000 7,1 40 
2028 21 ,100 5,994 21 ,100 5,994 
2029 22,300 4,783 22 ,300 4,783 
2030 23,500 3,506 23,500 3,506 
2031 24,900 2,156 24,900 2,156 
2032 26,200 731 26,200 731 

$ 19.700 1,046 175,000 41 ,797 194,700 42,843 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSE.E 

Schedule of Debt Service Requir.,.ments 
Water and Sewer Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Watet and Sewer Revenue. Water and Sewer Revenue 
and Tax Rerundir\g Bond State Revoh,lng Loan and Ta~ Refunding Bond Waler and Sewer Revenue Equipment AcqtJlsilton CON State of Tennessee 

Series-2021 CGA-2008-219 Serles 2019 Series 2020 sene• 2022 DW-2016-167 TOTAL TOTAL 
Ye1!f Prin<;!J1al Interest Pr1nc!eal lntereS1 Princl~I Interest Princlei!! Interest Prlnc!l!al _Jnteresl Prfnci~I Interest Prluci~al Interest 

'2025 s 75,000 26",025 262,215 27,969 280,000 37,850 61 ,750 23,900 62,050 13,199 10,517 l,271 751 ,532 130,214 
W26 15,000 23,775 266,016 24,168 290,000 36,150 65,000 22,047 63,750 11 ,691 10,727 1,246 770,493 119,077 
2027 80,000 21,450 269,871 20,313 295,000 27,4511 65,000 19,447 65,450 10,141 10,942 1,221 786,263 100,022 
2028 60,000 19,050 273 ,784 16,400 305,000 16,600 66 ,250 16,717 67,150 6,551 11,161 l,197 805,345 80,515 
2029 80,000 16,650 277,752 12.~32 315,000 9,450 71,500 14, 17 68,850 6,-920 11,3811 1,173 824 ,486 60,742 
2030 66,000 14,175 281,778 8,406 74,750 11,257 70,550 5,247 11 ,612 1,150 523,690 40,235 
2031 90,000 11,550 285,863 4 ,321 78 ,000 8,267 72,250 3,533 11,844 1,127 537,957 28.798 
2032 90000 8,850 140,097 1.112 78,000 6,707 73,100 2,627 12,081 f ,104 393,278 2{),400 

2033 90,000 6,600 BU50 5,147 12,323 1,082 163,573 12,829 
2034 95,000 4,750 81 ,250 3,522 12,569 1,060 188,819 9,332 
2035 95,000 2,650 64,500 1,796 8,918 532 188,418 5,178 
2036 95,000 950 95,000 950 

$ 1,030,000 156,675 S ..1.Q57,376 115121 1,485,000 129,500 8091250 132,924 543150 61,906 124 078 12163 61048,854 608,291 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Debt Service Requirements 
Natural Gas Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Equipment Acquisition CON Natural Gas Revenue 
Series 2022 Series 2020 TOTAL TOTAL 

Pnno(eal lnterssi Principal Interest Principal Interest 
Year 
2025 $ 10,950 2,329 33,250 12,869 44,200 15,198 
2026 11,250 2,063 35,000 11,872 46,250 13,935 
2027 11 ,550 1,790 35,000 10,472 46,550 12,262 
2028 11,850 1,509 36,750 9,002 48,600 10,511 
2029 12,150 1,221 38,500 7,602 50,650 8,823 
2030 12,450 926 40,250 6,062 52,700 6,988 
2031 12,750 623 42,000 4,452 54,750 5,075 
2032 12,900 464 42,000 3,612 54,900 4,076 
2033 43,750 2,772 43,750 2,772 
2034 43,750 1,897 43,750 1,897 
2035 45,500 967 45,500 967 

$ 95,850 10,925 '135,750 71 ,579 531 ,600 82,51)4 
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CITY OF HOH.ENW ALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Long-term Debt by Individl.lal Issue 

June 30, 202'1 

Paid and/or 
Original Date Last Issued Matured Refunded 
Amount fntcrest of Maturity Outstanding During During During Outstanding 
ofissue Rate Issue Date 7/1/2023 Period Period Period 6/30/2024 

Business-Type Activities 

Water and Sewer 

State Revolving 4,948,21 0 i.44% 2012 12/31/2031 $2,315,474 $ $ 258,098 $ $ 2,057,376 
DW-2016-167 400,000 0.90% 2008 10/31/2033 $ 133,666 $ $ 9,588 $ $ 124,078 
Series 2022 663,408 2-3% 2022 6/30/2032 $ 603,500 $ $ 60,350 $ $ 543,1 50 
Series 2019 2,620,000 2-3% 2019 5/1/2029 $ 1,760,000 $ $ 275,000 $ $ 1,485,000 
Series2020 1,040,000 2.25% 2020 6/30/2035 $ 87 1,000 $ $ 61,750 $ $ 809,250 
Series 2021 1,170,000 ·2.00% 2021 6/30/2036 $ 1,100,000 $ $ 70,000 $ $ 1,030,000 

Total Notes Payable $6,783,640 $ $ 734,786 $ $ 6,048,854 

Natural Gas 

Series 2022 117,072 2--3% 2022 6/30/2032 $ 106,500 $ $ 10,650 $ $ 95,850 

Series 2020 1,000,000 2.25% 2020 6/30/2035 .$ 469,000 $ $ 33,250 $ $ 435,750 

Total Notes Payable $ 575,500 $ $ 43,900 $ $ 531,600, 

Governmental Activities 

Tristar- Garbage Truck 175,000 5.578% 2023 6/30/2032 $ $ 175,000 $ $ $ 175,000 

CON - Solid Waste 142,360 1.75% 2.016 4/3012025 $ 38900 $ $ 19,200 $ $ 19,700 

Total Notes Payable $ 38900 $ 175,000 $ 19,200 $ $ 194,700 

•variable rate loan 
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Sewer Rates - Residential 

Up to 2,000 gal lons 

Over 2,000 gallons 

Water Rates - Residential 

Up to 2,000 gallons 

Over 2,000 gallons 

Natural Gas Rates - Residential 

ClTV OF HOflENW ALD, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Utility Rates in Force 

June 30, 2024 

Ins1de ity 

$23.58 Minimum charge 

$4.00 per I 000 gallons 

Inside City 

SI 5.72 Minimum charge 

$3,07 per 1,000 gallons 

Per 1,000 MCF's - var ies each month based on natural gas costs. 

There were approximately 3,575 water customers, approximately I 600 sewer customers and approximatley 
2,350 tlll.tvral gas C\lstotners at yearend. 
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Outside City 

$51.78 Minimum charge 

$6.90 per 1,000 gallons 

Outside City 

$34.52 Minimum oharge 

$4.60 per 1,000 gallons 



CITY OF HORE WALD TEN ESSEE 

Schedule of Federal and State Financial Assi tancc 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Receivable Rcccivabl 
Assistance State (Deferred) (Deferred) 

Listiug Grant Balance Grant Olher Grant Balance 
Number Number Gr.mtor Agency June 30, 2023 Receipts Receipts E;,cpenditures June 30, 2024 

State Program: 

NIA Z-19TJ-l'S 128 Tennessee Department 
High Visibility Enforcemem of Transportation 0 646 0 M6 0 

NIA NIA Tennessee Department of Safety 
School Resourse Officer and Homeland Security 0 300,000 0 300.000 0 

NIA NIA Tennessee Department of Cominerce. 
fire Fighter Equipment and Training and Insurance - Fire Marshall Oflice 0 56.160 0 56,160 0 

Total State 0 356,806 a 356,806 0 
Federal PrQgram: 

US Department llf Treasury 
21 .027 American Rescue Plan Act thru the State ofTennessec ($ l.13 l.368) 0 0 0 ($1 ,131.368) 

14,239 HONIE Grant US Departtnenl of Transportation 
thru Tennessee. Housing Development 0 87,202 0 87,202 0 

Agency 

Total Federal (I.l3 l ,368) 87,202 0 87,202 (1,131 368) 

Total Federal and State (l .131,368) 44-1,U() 0 444,008 ( l , l3 l ,368) 

rhis schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 
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COMPLIANCE AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL 



JOHN R . P □□ LE, CPA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

1 34 NORTH L AKE DRIVE 

HEN DERSONVILLE , T N 37075 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Hohenwald, Tennessee 
Hohenwald, Tennessee 

IT/NG 

( 5 1 5 ) B 22-4 1 7 7 

I have audited in accordanc • iLb lb auditing standards generally accepted in lh niled States 
of America and the· standards applicabl to financial audits c ntaine in Governm nr Audit in 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
gov ·rruncnlal ac1i viti , th bu iness-t pc activities, each major fund fl.h ily of Hoh.en vald as 
of and for th year ended Jun 30, 20=4 and the related no e to the linancial statero nts. which 
collectively comprise the City of Hohe-nwald's basic financial statements, and have issued a report 
thereon dated October 31, 2024. 

lnlcrn.il ontr IO er Fin.: ncial Reporting 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the City of 
1 loh..m al ' s internal control v r financ-ial rep rling internal con tr 1 as a ba is for designing the 
audil pr c dures that are appropriat in th ir W11stances r the purpose of xpressing an pinion 
on the financial stat mcnts, but not for rbe purpos of xpressing an opinio1;1 on the el] ctjveness 
of the Cit of Hoh nwald's internal control. Accordingly. I do not e ·pr ss an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Hohenwald' s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to pr :vent 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A mat rial w -akn ss is a defi ·iency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
conccted on a timcl ba 'i. . A signili ant d ficicncy is a d fi ien , or a ·ombination of 
deficiencies, in internal ntrol that i 1 'S sever than a material al 1 s, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance, 

My consid rntion or tb internal co1m I as for Lh limited purpo e des rib d in the preceding 
paragraph anti " s not d signed t id nlif all ti fici ncies in internal control that might be 
material , cak.nesses or significant deli iencie and therefore material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during the audit I did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. 
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Page 2 

Compliance and Other Mattcr.s 
As pai1 of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Hohenwald's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, n.:gLtlations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of the financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of the 
audit and1 accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of the tests djsclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of the Lesting of inLernal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit per-formed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering t11e entity' s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 31, 2024 
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CITY OF HOHENWALD, TENNES~EE 

Schedule of Disposition of Prior Year Comments 

June 30, 2024 

There were no fmdings in the prior year. 
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